
College of Humanities and Natural Sciences  
Council of Chairs Meeting –  Bobet 202 

January 12, 2015  !  3:30 p.m. –  5:00 p.m. 
 

        MINUTES 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Call to Order 
 Dean Maria Calzada called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. 
 
  Attended:  John Biguenet, Mary Brazier, Maria Calzada, Eileen Doll, Frank Jordan, 
Michael Kelly, Kenneth Keulman, Lynn Koplitz, David Moore, Connie Mui, Uriel Quesada and 
Connie Rodriguez 
 
I.         Approval of Minutes 
           Minutes of December 8, 2014 were approved. 
 
II. Provost Retreat Update 
 Dean Calzada reported that she attended a Provost retreat today.  The Provost reported 
there is a significant deficit for 2015-2016, and that it will continue the following year.  The 
voluntary severance plan savings were minimal.  The Board of Trustees asked Fr. Wildes to 
present a long-term plan for financial stability.  Fr. Wildes will hire a higher education consultant 
to address this issue.  A steering committee of faculty will be formed and will include vice 
presidents, a dean representative, one representative from each college, and other members who 
will work closely with the consultant.  The chairs expressed that there should be two 
representatives from HNS, one from the humanities and one from the sciences.  Dr. Rodriguez 
said that she would report back to the Senate that The College of HNS would like two 
representatives.  The chairs also expressed their concerns about no future raises and the effect it 
might have on junior faculty. 
 Dean Calzada handed out a preliminary stats report for Spring 2015 (Attachment #1) 
which shows that the number of undergraduates is going down.  She then talked about the 
personalized letters from departments to help recruit prospective students.  Dean Calzada said that 
she would let enrollment management know that faculty need more lead-time on the letters.  
Professor Biguenet offered to share his letters with the other chairs. 
 
III. Academic Integrity Issues 
 Associate Dean Uriel Quesada reported on the status of the honor code.  The Provost 
approved the latest draft for the 2015-2016 bulletin.  This semester the deans will have to 
circulate that version to the Council of Chairs and decide on the approval process. This fall the 
senate will make the final decision on this regard.  
 Dr. Quesada went on to discuss his concerns about reporting honor code violations.  
Some professors prefer not to report anything, which makes it difficult for the dean’s office to 
track students who commit several violations.  Also, sanctions, most commonly plagiarism, are 
minimal.  We should work with WAC to educate students on plagiarism, possibly requiring the 
students to take a test on plagiarism online.  
 Dean Calzada said that some departments have a uniform policy on honor code violations 
and others don’t.  She suggested a sub-committee of the Council of Chairs to address the issue, 
and asked Dr. Mui to help.   Dr. Moore said that someone from his department could also 
possibly help.   
 



IV. Bulletin Update 
 Dr. Quesada said that January 15th is the deadline for submitting corrections for the 
bulletin.  Several departments have not given any changes to their course descriptions.  Some of 
the chairs expressed the need for a different process and for help remembering changes to 
courses.  Dean Calzada said that there is no automatic process for this.  Dr. Quesada said that he 
would help the department by sending course approval letters from the UC&CC to the chairs.   
 Also, if you have a new course or program, it must be approved by the UC&CC in 
January or it cannot be in the bulletin. 
 
V. On-line Evaluations 
 Dean Calzada reported that students seem to like the on-line evaluation process.  There 
were some issues with Blackboard being blocked until the students completed their evaluations, 
and Information Technology is working on this.    

 
VI. Faculty Evaluations by Chairs 

Dean Calzada said that faculty evaluations by chairs are very important.  It is good for 
faculty to know that their chairs are aware of what they are accomplishing.  She asked the chairs 
to please highlight their achievements with a short narrative, without using numbers.  Dean 
Calzada also said that she should know about any concerns.  Vita updates go to the chairs and the 
dean’s office in December.  Faculty publication and presentation information is sent to the 
Provost for the Provost Report.  Evaluations are now due mid-February, after Mardi Gras. 

 
VII. Calendar 

January 14 – Chairs submit faculty retirement notices and letters of recommendation on 
emeritus status to the dean. 

January 23 – Chairs submit renewal recommendations for 1st and 2nd year of service 
faculty to dean 

February 27 – Fourth year pre-tenure track faculty submit materials to chair 
 

VIII. Website Update 
Dean Calzada announced that there is a new copywriter on the web team who is available 

to help with our department websites.  If anyone needs help with copywriting, please let Diane 
Riehlmann know and she will help coordinate with the web team. 

 
IX. Strategic Planning 

Dean Calzada said that there would be two motions at the next College Assembly.  One is 
to recommend Loyola College as the new name and the second is to accept the mission, vision, 
and values as proposed.  All material is posted on the College of HNS intranet.   

Dean Calzada also said that there would be a CPT meeting tomorrow to talk about 
strategic priorities to develop action plans and a budget. 

 
X. Motions 

Dr. Koplitz brought two motions to the Council of Chairs: 
Motion 1.)  To make the final grades due not less than 3 full days after final exams are 

over.   
The motion was seconded and all approved.  The motion passed.  Dean Calzada said that 

she cannot make this decision, but will take it to the appropriate bodies. 
 

 Motion 2.)  Spring semester not to start before Jan 10th. 
 The motion was seconded and all approved.  Dean Calzada said this motion would also 
be brought to the appropriate bodies.  



 
Meeting adjourned at 5:00 p.m. 
 
 
Attachment: (Preliminary Stats 2015S) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 


